ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 23, 2007
8:19 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Represent ati ve Bob Roses, Vice Chair
Representati ve John Coghill
Representati ve Kyl e Johansen
Representative Crai g Johnson
Represent ati ve Andrea Dol
Representati ve Max G uenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 10

“"An Act prohibiting legislators and certain forner |egislators
from accepting or agreeing to accept conpensation for certain
work; relating to disclosures under the Legislative Ethics Act;
and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 20

"An Act relating to disclosure of canpaign contributions;
prohi biting spouses and domestic partners of |legislators and
| egi sl ative enployees from receiving conpensation for | obbying;
and prohibiting legislators and legislative enployees from
entering into contracts to provide consulting services."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 10

SHORT TI TLE: LEG SLATI VE DI SCLOSURES/ QUTSI DE | NCOVE

SPONSOR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE( s) LYNN, GARDNER, GATTO, GARA,
SEATON, HOLMES, LEDCUX, BUCH, W LSQON, DOOGAN

01/ 16/ 07 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/5/07
01/ 16/ 07 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- January 23, 2007



01/ 16/ 07 (H) STA, JUD
01/ 23/ 07 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 20

SHORT Tl TLE: CAMPAI GN FI NANCE/ LOBBYI NG CONSULTI NG

SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) HARRIS, MEYER, HAWKER, CHENAULT,
SAMUELS, FAI RCLOUGH, NEUMVAN, WLSQON, LEDOQUX, THOVAS, RAMRAS,
JOHNSON

01/ 16/ 07 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 5/ 07

01/ 16/ 07 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 07 (H) STA, JUD

01/ 23/ 07 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE BERTA GARDNER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 10 as sponsor.

JOYCE ANDERSON, Ethics Comm ttee Adm nistrator

Sel ect Conmittee on Legislative Ethics

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
10.

| RIS MATTHEWS, St af f

to Representative Berta Gardner

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions on behal f
of Representative Gardner, sponsor of HB 10.

BROOKE M LES, Executive Director

Al aska Public Ofices Conm ssion (APQOC)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 10.

STEVE CLARY, Executive Director

Al aska Public Interest Research G oup (AkPIRG

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of AkPIRG in support of
HB 10.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHN HARRI S

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- January 23, 2007



Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 20.

TOM VWRI GHT

House Majority Ofice

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded comment during the hearing on HB
20.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Conmittee
neeting to order at 8:19:55 AM Representatives Roses, Coghill
Johansen, Johnson, Guenberg, Doll, and Lynn were present at the
call to order

8:21:27 AM

CHAIR LYNN related that the gavel he wuses had been his
grandnother's, given to her as an award for being "the nost
i nproved student."

8:22: 09 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that, thus far, 27 bills have been referred
to the House State Affairs Standing Commttee, 10 of those bills

addressing legislation pertaining to ethics. He said the
| egislature is listening to the public's demand for inproved
ethics |I|egislation. He stated that although no ethics

| egi sl ation can nmake an unethical person ethical, better ethics
legislation can help keep good people out of trouble by
clarifying what is and is not a conflict of interest. He opined
that raising the level of trust between constituents and their
government should inprove upcomng negotiations for a gas
pi pel i ne.

8:23:52 AM

CHAIR LYNN nentioned the day's agenda and stated that a
bi parti san approach to ethics legislation is critical, because
"ethics has no party |abel." He relayed that Governor Sarah
Palin has stated that she would like to see one ethics bill
enacted, rather than several bills that each address only one
aspect of the ethics situation while mssing the big picture and
| eading to uni ntended consequences. He encouraged the conmmttee

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- January 23, 2007



to work in crafting a good bill in a tinely manner and to

consider a bill from the admnistration. He suggested a
subconm ttee may be fornmed. Chair Lynn stated his intent is not
to nove bills out of conmttee today, in order to give due

consideration to the issues; however, he related his w sh for
the coonmttee to avoid "paralysis by analysis."

8:26:51 AM

CHAIR LYNN directed attention to a handout from the Al aska
Budget Report which offers a conparison between "the various
bills."

HB 10- LEG SLATI VE DI SCLOSURES/ QUTSI DE | NCOVE

8:27:20 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the first order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 10, "An Act prohibiting legislators and certain fornmer
| egislators from accepting or agreeing to accept conpensation
for certain work; relating to disclosures under the Legislative
Et hics Act; and providing for an effective date."

8:29: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE = BERTA  GARDNER, Al aska State Legi sl ature,
introduced HB 10 as sponsor. She thanked Chair Lynn for his
| eadership on the issue of ethics, his efforts to craft a solid
bill that wll garner bi-partisan support, and the expedi ency
wi th which he scheduled the bill to be heard. She stated, "It's
unfortunate that scandal and allegation of inpropriety against
just a few do taint the entire body." She relayed that HB 10 is

not ainmed at any particular individual; it applies to al

| egislators and is designed to pronote disclosure and, through
that, increase public confidence. She said she and her staff
have worked closely with the Alaska Public Ofices Comm ssion
(APOC), legislative legal teans, and Joyce Anderson on the
issue, listening to the concerns expressed and trying to
incorporate them into the bill. Representati ve Gardner stated
that while she believes HB 10 is a good bill and there are
provisions in it to which she is absolutely conmtted, she
acknowl edges that there is still room for inprovenent through

suggesti ons.

8:31: 51 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- January 23, 2007



JOYCE ANDERSON, Ethics Committee Adm nistrator, Select Committee
on Legislative Ethics, Alaska State Legislature, stated that
al though she has worked closely with the offices of both
Representative Gardner and Chair Lynn in attenpting to make the
| anguage of HB 10 clear, she does not speak on behalf of the
commttee that has not yet had a chance to review the bill. One
exception to that is Section 2, she stated, the |anguage of
whi ch she said the conmttee welconmed to the bill. She reviewd
that Section 2 cenents the advisory opinion issued by the Sel ect
Commttee on Legislative Ethics that legislators, |legislative
enpl oyees, and public nenbers of the Select Conmittee on
Legislative Ethics should be required to file ethics disclosures
for anything that occurred while in office, even though the
di scl osure date may be after they have left office.

M5. ANDERSON expressed a favorable opinion of Section 1 of HB
10, because of the change in the |language [in paragraph 1, page
1, lines 9-11], which read as foll ows:

(1) a fornmer nenber of the legislature or to
a person formerly enployed by the |egislative branch
of government unless a [THE] provision of this chapter
specifically states that it applies;

M5. ANDERSON expl ained, "So, what it does is it opens it up a
little bit and makes it not just a particular section but ...
for the whole chapter.” She said Section 4 of the bill,
although in the ethics section of statute, is admnistered by
APQCC, thus she said she would refrain from testifying on that
particular section. She offered to answer any questions
regardi ng [ subsection (c) of] Section 2, which read as foll ows:

(c) During the term for which elected or
appoi nted and for one year thereafter a |egislator may
not, directly or by authorizing another to act on the
| egislator's behal f, accept or agree to accept
conpensation, except from the State of Al aska, for
work associated with l|egislative, admnistrative, or
political action.

8:34:15 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if there are any other Select

Conmttee on Legislative Ethics' opinions that should be
consi dered for codification.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- January 23, 2007



M5. ANDERSON answer ed yes. She stated her intent to provide a
list of such to the comm ttee.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expressed his appreciation of the work
of the Select Conmttee on Legislative Ethics and said he | ooks
forward to receiving those suggested changes.

8:36:31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL, regarding Section 2, questioned whether
it may be difficult to determ ne whether a person is acting on
hi s/ her own behal f or being directed by soneone el se.

MS. ANDERSON responded that that |anguage is in another portion
of statute where the word "another", used in ™"authorizing
another to act", was nmeant to mean a staff person.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL suggested there could be an interesting
di scussi on on the topic.

8:39:25 AM

M5. ANDERSQON, in response to a question from Chair Lynn, said
the phrase "one year thereafter” is "not specifically in the
code anywhere." She stated, "The only prohibition on
| egislators at this point is that they cannot becone a | obbyi st
for one year after they leave office.” She recalled that there
is another prohibition that has to do wth not allowng
legislators to take a job with the state "if they have actually
voted on that particular position.” In response to a follow up
question from Chair Lynn, she stated her bel i ef t hat
adm nistering the rule about "one year thereafter” would be
difficult fromthe point of view of the commttee.

8:40: 31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG conmented that the Select Committee on
Legislative Ethics' jurisdiction ends after the |egislator
| eaves office. He asked Ms. Anderson if she thinks the Sel ect
Commttee on Legislative Ethics should be allowed to take action
on "something appropriate” after the legislator |eaves office
or, if not, "how would they enforce this for one year
t hereafter?"

8:41: 35 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- January 23, 2007



M5. ANDERSON responded that the "legislators are covered for one
year after they leave office, for the purpose of filing ethics
conplaints. ™ She said once a legislative enployee has |eft
enpl oyment, the Select Conmittee on Legislative Ethics has no
jurisdiction over them Furthernore, in the ethics code there
is a sanction section. She continued:

So, if a legislator were to leave office and violate
this new section of the code that we're ... |ooking at
today, if a conplaint was filed, the [Select Commttee
on Legislative Ethics] would have jurisdiction to | ook
at that particular conplaint if they found that person
in violation. The sanction section of the code would
allow the conmittee to issue a fine of up to $5,000 if
they felt [that to be] appropriate. That is the only
penalty that | see in here at this point. So, in
| ooking at the new | anguage, there would really not be
a penalty involved with a violation if it was for one
year thereafter, unless a conplaint was filed against
a particular |egislator.

8:42: 51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG drew attention to t he wor d
"conpensation” on page 3, line 2. He said that in the |egal
sense, the word usually denotes incone, and he said he could see
sonebody arguing that he/she was not getting conpensation but
was being given a gift. He suggested that a phrase such as
"anyt hing of val ue" be used instead.

8:43: 26 AM

RIS MATTHEWS, Staff to Representative Berta Gardner, Al aska
State Legislature, testifying on Dbehalf of Representative
Gardner, sponsor, noted that "conpensation" is defined in AS
24.60.990 [paragraph (4)], which read as foll ows:

(4) "conpensati on” means remuner ati on for
personal services rendered, including salary, fees,
commi ssions, bonuses, and simlar paynments, but does
not include reinbursenent for actual expenses incurred
by a person;

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said Ms. Matthews just defined what is
i ncone, but soneone could maintain that what they were given was
a gift.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- January 23, 2007



8:44:13 AM

M5. MATTHEWS responded that "anything of value" is also defined
in [part of AS 24.60.990(a)(2)], which read as follows:

(2) "anything of value,"” "benefit," or "thing of
value" includes all mtters, whether tangible or
i ntangi ble, that could reasonably be considered to be
a mterial advantage, of material worth, use, or
service to the person to whom it is conferred; the
terms are intended to be interpreted broadly and

enconpass all matters that the recipient mght find
sufficiently desirable to do sonething in exchange
for;

M5. MATTHEWS noted that the statute goes on to list sone
excepti ons. She noted that that statute is available in the
comittee packet.

8:45: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL renmarked, "The exception is sone value
for state work associated with legislative, admnistrative,
political action."” He asked M. Anderson, "Wat was your
thinking ... on the political action part, as far as being paid
by the state? That would be a policy action?"

8:45: 33 AM
MS. ANDERSON repl i ed:

When | met wth both Representative Lynn and
Representative Gardner's office, | expressed to them
that all three of those terns have really not had any
particular discussion by the ethics commttee, and
there are really not any advisory opinions that have
dealt with those particular definitions in any part of
t he code. So, | guess | would have to |ook at vyour
guestion and ... do a little bit nore research and get
back to you.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL stressed the inportance of clarifying
whi ch actions are okay. If the state is going to prohibit
soneone from political action that conmes with sone reward to it,
for a whole year after he/she is out of office, "we want to take
a good, hard look at that." He added, "If it's paid for by the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- January 23, 2007



state, that might be just as big a problemas if it's paid for
by anybody el se.”

8:46: 55 AM

M5. MATTHEWS began her review of HB 10. She said the bill would
do three things: prohibit legislators fromtaking certain types
of paid work outside of their legislative position; require
greater disclosure of sonme of the outside work done by
| egislators; and require a disclosure requirenent. She said
there is also sone "clean-up | anguage” in the bill, and the neat
of bill is in Sections 2, 3, and 4. Ms. Matthews reviewed
Section 2 of the bill [text provided previously]. She said the
intent is to ensure that |egislators are only paid by the State
of Alaska for "legislative-type work." Section 3, she
expl ai ned, would require a legislator, |egislative enployee, or
public nmenber of the commttee leaving office to file a final
di scl osure. She noted that the |anguage in Section 3 supports
an advisory opinion filed by the Select Commttee on Legislative
Ethics in Decenber 2006. Section 4 would ask that |egislators
filling out forms provide nore specific information regarding
the nature of the work they've done. Most peopl e know what an
accountant or |awer does, Ms. Matthews said, but there are sone
jobs that are |ess known. Section 4 would give the public
additional tools with which to ook at disclosures and determ ne
whet her or not people are being conpensated fairly.

8:50:49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG di sclosed that he is a nonpracticing
menber of the Al aska Bar. He drew attention to the word
"adm nistrative" on page 2, line 4, and asked:

If I were to go back to practicing famly |aw and took
child support cases - either people seeking to collect
child support or change child support, or defending
those case before the Child Support Enforcenent
Division - would that now be prohibited?

M5. MATTHEWS answered yes. She conti nued:

Any sort of appearance under an adm nistrative hearing
woul d have to be prohibited under this statute. And |
think there's been a lot of discussion about that as
we've talked about it. [The Select Conmmttee on
Legislative Ethics] issued an opinion ... a little
over a year ago about |egislators working on behal f of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - O- January 23, 2007



their constituents before admnistrative hearing
of ficers, and there was the feeling that

| egislators should not be talking to the decision
makers in those cases on these constituents' issues.
W think it's reasonable to expect that ... a
| egi sl ator appearing before a hearing officer may be
treated differently than another attorney who doesn't
have that title.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG questioned what evidence M. Matthews
has to support her statenment. He clarified:

" m tal king about a situation such as the hypothetical
that | gave, where nost famly lawers do take child
support cases, and nmany tinmes they go before the Child
Support Enforcenent D vision. That's a very serious
allegation that ... you're mnmaking against a large
nunber of attorneys, ... frankly, and other attorneys
who practiced maybe before the Commercial Fisheries
Entry Commssion, and all kind of agencies maybe
taki ng procurenent cases under the procurenent code,
or anything .... Very many |awers in this state do
t hat . And are you aware of any circunstances where
that sort of thing -- because you' re going to prohibit
a whol e profession frompracticing wwth your limts."

8:53:17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER provided the response, stating that she
has no intention of maligning anybody's intention or behavior.
She explained that the bill is attenpting to clarify what is
accept abl e, honorable, and worthy of respect. She said she is
not fully commtted to this particular provision; however, she
said she wants to ensure people don't have the perception of
"taking advantage of their office in enploynent, while they're
| egislators or shortly thereafter - that they don't trade on
that title." She suggested that the period of one year nay not
be the best tim ng.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG replied that he is not concerned about
the tine. He said he is nore concerned with the quasi-
adj udi cative function than the rul emaking function. He said he
thinks attorneys, for exanple, should be able to appear in a
foreign agency in a quasi-adjudicative function.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER proffered that the point to consider is
whet her a nenber of the public with a child support case who

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- January 23, 2007



wants to hire an attorney wll think he/she stands a better
chance in hiring an attorney who is also a representative over
"M. Average attorney."

8:55:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG responded, "That would be |ike saying
you can't go before a judge because you're going to get better
treatnent as an attorney before a superior court judge ...." He
noted that hearing officers are held to a quasi-judicial
standard of conduct.

8:56: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER stated t hat she under st ands
Representative G uenberg's concern; however, she said the intent
is to convey that the legislators wll be held to a higher
standard. As public citizens beconme public officials, she said,
they give up sonme opportunities, give up privacy, and disclose

details that as private citizens they never would. She
reiterated her willingness to consider anendnents to the bill.
8:57: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES expressed concern regar di ng t he
retroactivity aspect of bill. He clarified that if the bill is
adopted, not only will legislators and enpl oyees not be all owed

to perform certain work for one year after |eaving office, but
"we have another clause in here where we want to go back
retroactively and require a change in behavior of those that
have already left office.” He asked, "If we're going to hold
ourselves to a certain standard, why would we then want to go
back and change the conditions under which other people have
al ready served?"

8:58: 38 AM

M5. MATTHEWS indicated that the proposed legislation mrrors the
advi sory opinion of the Select Commttee on Legislative Ethics,
whi ch requires those leaving office to file disclosures.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would like the commttee to
take a legal look at the issue, because he said he does not
think retroactive nmeasures woul d be required.

9:00: 07 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- January 23, 2007



M5. MATTHEWS said there are exanples of reporting deadlines in
The Legislative Advisor, a publication generated by the Select
Commttee on Legislative Ethics. Those exanples include
| egislators leaving office on January 16 and specify that those
| egislators would be subject to the Mirch 15 recording
requirenents.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG reiterated that he would |like a |ega
opi ni on.

9: 00: 54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES stated that he does not have a problemwth
the proposed legislation, although it my need sone tweaking.
He stated that when the prior set of legislators were sworn into
office, they had a set of regulations, guidelines, and ethics
that they were supposed to follow, and to go back now to clarify
situations under which they were sworn in and hold them to a
different standard from what they were expected to uphold in the
begi nni ng gi ves hi m concern.

9:02: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER reiterated Ms. Matthews' previous renmark
that the bill is clarifying the advisory opinion and making it
| ess ambi guous.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES said he appreciates what Representative
Gardner is saying; however, he anticipates offering anendnents
on this issue.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER suggested Ms. Anderson be included in the
di scussion the next tinme the bill is heard.

9:03: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated for the record his concern wth
[ subparagraph (B), on lines 1-2], page 3, which would require
the disclosure of the total nunber of hours spent on services.
He opined that there needs to be sone |anguage included to allow
APCC or sonme other entity to use a different standard when
hourly wages are not applicable. Taxi drivers, for exanple, are
paid by the mle, not by the hour, he said.

9: 04: 50 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- January 23, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL spoke of trading. He suggested using an
i ndustry standard rather than figuring service by hours. He
stated his agreenent with the concept that a person shouldn't be
receiving an inordinate amount of nobney just because he/she is a
| egi sl at or.

9: 06: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER said this issue is the heart of the bill.
Not wi t hstanding that, she said she is willing to speak to APCC
to find sonme other |anguage to satisfy the concerns expressed by
the commttee, while keeping the bill strong.

9:08: 23 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d he just wants what is fair.
9:08: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noted that a representative of APOC was
avai lable to testify.

9:08: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  JOHNSON brought up another issue, which is
wor ki ng for comm ssions. He said many people generate their
living in this manner and, |ooked at from an hourly perspective,
one hour may garner a disproportionately large incone while
another will earn alnbst none. He mentioned real estate work.

9:09: 43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noted that realtors are |icensed
professionals, thus they would not have to disclose in the sane
detail. She said a realtor who sold one house and nmade a | ot of
noney also spent tine designing and running the advertisenent.
Because of the nature of the work, the tine spent is an
esti mat e.

9:10: 12 AM
CHAI R LYNN di scl osed that he holds a real estate |icense.
9:10: 18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON suggested that real estate may not have
been the best exanple. He stated that there are a lot of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- January 23, 2007



wor kers who earn conm ssion but whose inconme is not "cut and dry
on a contract."

9:10:40 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noted that wunder current |law, a person
can report $100,000 in services with no other information. She
added, "And while this proposal may be inperfect, it still, |
think, is better to say, '$100,000 for 10 hours [than] $100, 000
- none of your business.'"

9:11: 32 AM

BROOKE M LES, Executive Director, Al aska Public Ofices
Comm ssion (APOC), stated that that HB 10, for the first tine in
Al aska law, codifies the fact that dividends from a limted
l[iability conmpany are incone and nust be disclosed as such. She
said APCC appreciates the clarification, which she noted wll
provide a useful tool in enforcing financial disclosure |aws.
Additionally, HB 10 provides that when a person subject to
| egislative ethics law, particularly a legislator, is providing
prof essional services for renuneration, those services nust be
described in sufficient detail for the public knows what the
| egi slator actually did for his/her enployer or client.

M5. M LES opi ned:

In that ... legislative ethics code ..., we have a
neasure that prohibits legislators from being paid for
work that is not comrensurate with the anmount they're
pai d. And so, should an allegation be nade to the
commttee that a legislator has violated this section
of law, having a standard that's disclosed on their
public disclosure statenment would be a very useful
tool to the commttee.

M5. M LES expressed appreciation for the clarity in the bill on
page 3, subparagraph (C), which instructs a legislator, already
required to disclose a source of incone, to report the anmount of
t hat incone. She said the |language is without the caveat that
that incone have an interest in |legislative, admnistrative, or
political action. She explained that that caveat is subjective
and has caused confusion and a lack of full reporting in the
past, "in an accidental way." The neasure, she added, w |l not
have fiscal inpact on the work of the conm ssion.

9:15:10 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- January 23, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG told Ms. Mles that he supports the
elimnation of |anguage on page 3, lines 4-6; however, he noted
that the same |anguage is not being elimnated from page 3,
lines 9-10. He asked if she thought it should be.

9:16: 55 AM

M5. MLES agreed it would be easier to admnister the law if
t hat | anguage was renoved fromlines 9-10.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to page 2, |line 24,
regardi ng dividends received from a limted liability conpany,
and he suggested that sonething |ike "anything el se of value" be

added. He explained that it is easy to call sonething other
than a dividend. Furthernore, he suggested that the |anguage
say "any kind of an entity" to include sole proprietorshinp,
limted liability partnership, or a corporation. He said that

woul d get rid of wiggle roomin the |anguage.

M5. MLES answered that APOC would find any «clarification
| anguage to be acceptable and wel cone. She noted that limted
liability conpanies did not exist at the tinme the original
| anguage in statute was created. She stated, "W would like to
make sure that we enconpass all."

The conmm ttee took an at-ease from9:19:37 to 9:20: 10 AM

9: 20: 33 AM

STEVE CLARY, Executive Director, Alaska Public Interest Research
G oup (AKPIRG, testified in favor of HB 10. He mentioned his
and many others' participation in forunms [related to ethics]

held in Anchorage and Juneau. He said he is excited in
anticipating the result of the foruns, the l|egislature' s focus
on ethics, and the admnistration's input. He said the bill is

sinple in its intent to ensure legislators don't wuse their
office incorrectly and that they disclose the work that they are

doi ng. He posited that critical to having citizen |egislature
is letting the public know what the nenbers are doing for noney
earned outside of the |legislature. He said the bill's

bi parti san sponsorship is a great effort, and he |ooks forward
to the legislature's putting together the best of the bills to
bri ng about what's best for Al askans.

9:23: 58 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- January 23, 2007



CHAI R LYNN announced that HB 10 was heard and hel d.

HB 20- CAMPAI GN FI NANCE/ LOBBYI NG CONSULTI NG

[ Contains brief nmention of HB 10]
9:24:14 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the l|last order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 20, "An Act relating to disclosure of canpaign
contributions; prohibiting spouses and donestic partners of
| egi sl ators and | egi sl ative enpl oyees from recei ving
conpensation for |obbying; and prohibiting |legislators and
| egi sl ative enployees from entering into contracts to provide
consul ting services."

9:24:22 AM
REPRESENTATI VE JOHN HARRI S, Al aska State Legislature, testifying

as sponsor of HB 20, noted that over the years, governnent has
been made nore and nore conplicated, and he stated his position

that the legislature should neke serving governnment "as
convenient and as easy for as many people in this state to
qualify to be a legislator.” He said fornmer Representative

Et han Berkowi tz commented that one of the biggest ethical issues
in the legislature is the Constitutional Budget Reserve (CBR)

Representative Harris said probably 95 percent of the people in
Al aska don't understand that it requires a three-quarter vote of
the legislature to take noney from the CBR He said vote
trading occurs frequently [relating to control of CBR votes].
Representative Harris said he thinks that is what the public

does not want, but nevertheless it happens. He asked, " So,
should we do away with the CBR? The public put it in, the
public has to take it away." He stated that everything

previously discussed related to HB 10 wuld "create a
difficulty.” He suggested that the way to sinplify things would
be to take away the ability of a legislature to work outside of
the legislature entirely. The only way that could be done, he
related, is to pay |legislators enough noney so they can afford
to serve. Representative Harris said he is not suggesting that
manner of sinplification, but reiterated that that is what it
woul d t ake. He said he doesn't disagree with reporting incone.
The focus, he suggested, nust be, "How do we nake it the very
best to get the nost anmount of people to qualify to be a
| egi sl ator?" He said he thinks that's the question the public
wants asked. Many people don't want their business dealings
di scl osed and, thus, won't run for office.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 16- January 23, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE HARRI S said there are other options of which the
public should be aware. For exanple, many states have sw tched
to holding shorter legislative sessions, holding session every
two years, or having a biannual budget.

REPRESENTATIVE HARRIS, in response to a question from Chair
Lynn, agreed that norality cannot be |[egislated. He said
gui delines can be set so that there is a penalty for unethica
behavi or. He explained that what he was talking about
previously is the issue of conpensation. He said he works for
salary and he did not work at all |ast sumrer because the
legislature is on call at the behest of the governor and the
governor had the legislature "under the threat of a call all
sutmer and all fall." He said he is not conplaining, but wants
to point out that not many people in the public would endure
t hat .

9:33: 50 AM
REPRESENTATI VE HARRI S said he asked the governor if she would

sponsor an ethics bill, and he told the conmttee that he would
be working closely to help nove al ong such a bill.

9: 34: 48 AM

CHAIR LYNN said it may be better to work with the governor's
bill because "she certainly has nore horsepower than the rest of
us." Notw thstanding that, he recomended hearing all the other
ethics bills that are put across the House Floor in order to
incorporate theminto the governor's bill. He stated that there
are Jlaws against burglary and theft, thus, he said the
governnment legislates norality all the tine with civil |aw.

REPRESENTATI VE HARRI S said he is not arguing that guidelines are
bad; he is just pointing out that having |aws does not nake
people better and will not prevent people from choosing to break
t he | aw

REPRESENTATI VE HARRI S spoke of the effect one person's breaking
the law has on the rest of the group to which he/she bel ongs.
He said it is a very unconfortable feeling to be associated
through the public eye wth a nenber or nenbers of the
| egislature who may not be ethical. He stated that the
| egi slature sets the guidelines for ethical behavior.

9:39: 07 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- January 23, 2007



CHAIR LYNN tal ked about the conplexity of the issue and said he
t hi nks nost everyone is an honest, hard-working, ethical person,
doi ng the best he/she can. He said the legislature deals with
controversial issues and "nothing is sinple.™

9:40: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  HARRI S, I n response to a coment from
Representative G uenberg, said as of yesterday the governor's
bill will not be limted to adm nistrative ethics.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG r esponded by enphasi zing the inportance
of including the mnority party in discussions related to all
ethics bills. He stated that to have real credibility, HB 20
shoul d have the support of the Denocrats, the Republicans, the
governor, and the press. If an ethics bill is seen to be
partisan or advancing a hidden agenda not in the public's
interest, then "the wentire public servant profession wll
receive the black eye ...."

REPRESENTATI VE HARRIS concurred wth Representative G uenberg
and said he thinks the governor, although a Republican, wants to
be inclusive of all parties. He said he would ask that the
governor make certain she include everyone in the discussion.

CHAIR LYNN said, "Really, the bill should be sponsored by our
constituents; it's what it's all about."

REPRESENTATI VE HARRIS said the consultant hired to present an
ethics semnar last week to the legislators and staff nentioned

the fact that it is always the group in power that wll get
nailed with the ethics conplaints, because that group makes nore
of the decisions. Trying to inpose [blane] is a mstake, he

i ndicated. He gave Representative G uenberg his word that "this
will not be a partisan issue ...."

9:45: 27 AM
REPRESENTATIVE HARRIS stated that HB 20 is inportant to the
social and ethical climte of the legislature, and he expressed

his appreciation for the commttee's hearing the bill early in
t he session.

TOM WRI GHT, House Myjority Ofice, Alaska State Legislature,
testifying on behalf of the House Majority O fice, noted that HB

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- January 23, 2007



20 was written with broad |anguage intentionally to allow for
the antici pated di scussion of the issues addressed in the bill.

[ HB 20 was heard and hel d.]

9:47:15 AM

CHAIR LYNN announced that a subcommittee would be forned to
further study HB 10 and HB 20. He appointed the follow ng
menbers to the subconmttee: Representati ves Roses, Coghill,

and Gruenberg. He said any others would be wel cone.
9:48: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL opined that the three people asked to be
on the subcommttee would provide a good start to studying the

ethics issues of both bills, as well as to get input from
sponsors of other ethics bills and consider the governor's
stance on the issues. He suggested considering M. Anderson's
af orenenti oned, prom sed report before doing any other work. In
response to Chair Lynn, he said he would be glad to be chair of
the subcomm ttee. He suggested the subcommttee be allowed 10

days for its work before conmng back to the comrittee with its
findi ngs.

9:51:27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that an announcenent be nade
on the House Floor that anyone working on ethics bills share
hi s/her ideas with the subconmttee as soon as possible, so that
the subcommttee will have that information available to it.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL offered to mmke an announcenent on the
House Fl oor regarding the neeting tine of the subcommttee.

CHAIR LYNN enphasized that the subcommttee neetings would be
open to the public.

9:52:37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES said he wanted to ensure no one has a
problem with the fact that he was chosen to serve on the Select
Comm ttee on Legislative Ethics and would al so be serving on the
subcommi tt ee.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he doesn't think it is an issue.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- January 23, 2007



ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
State Affairs Standing Conmmttee neeting was adjourned at
9:53: 55 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- January 23, 2007



